
BOROUGH OF TAMWORTH 

 
 

 

CABINET 
 
 

31 August 2016 
 
 
A meeting of the CABINET will be held on Thursday, 8th September, 2016, 6.00 pm 
in Committee Room 1 - Marmion House 
 

 
A G E N D A 

 
NON CONFIDENTIAL 

 
 
1 Apologies for Absence  

2 Minutes of the Previous Meeting (Pages 1 - 4) 

3 Declarations of Interest  

 To receive any declarations of Members’ interests (pecuniary and non-pecuniary) 
in any matters which are to be considered at this meeting. 
 
When Members are declaring a pecuniary or non-pecuniary interest in respect of 
which they have dispensation, they should specify the nature of such interest.  
Members should leave the room if they have a pecuniary or non-pecuniary 
interest in respect of which they do not have a dispensation.   
 

4 Question Time:  

 To answer questions from members of the public pursuant to Executive 
Procedure Rule No. 13 
 

5 Matters Referred to the Cabinet in Accordance with the Overview and 
Scrutiny Procedure Rules  

 None 
 

6 Tamworth and Lichfield Business Survey (Pages 5 - 8) 

 (Report of the Portfolioholder for Regeneration) 
 

 
Yours faithfully 
 
 

N0N-CONFIDENTIAL



 
 
 
Chief Executive 
 
 
People who have a disability and who would like to attend the meeting should contact 
Democratic Services on 01827 709264 or e-mail committees@tamworth.gov.uk 
preferably 24 hours prior to the meeting.  We can then endeavour to ensure that any 
particular requirements you may have are catered for. 
 
 
 
 
To Councillors: D Cook, R Pritchard, S Claymore, S Doyle, J Goodall and M Thurgood. 



 

 

1  
 

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE 

CABINET 
HELD ON 18th AUGUST 2016 

 
 

 
PRESENT: Councillors R Pritchard (Vice-Chair), S Claymore, S Doyle, 

J Goodall and M Thurgood 

 
The following officers were present: Anthony E Goodwin (Chief Executive), John 
Wheatley (Executive Director Corporate Services), Rob Barnes (Corporate 
Director Communities, Partnerships and Housing) and John Day (Corporate 
Performance Officer) 
 
 

25 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor D Cook 
 
 

26 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  
 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 28 July 2016 were approved and signed as a 
correct record. 
 
(Moved by Councillor S Doyle and seconded by Councillor J Goodall) 
 
 

27 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
 
There were no Declarations of Interest. 
 
 

28 QUESTION TIME:  
 
 
None 
 
 

29 MATTERS REFERRED TO THE CABINET IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PROCEDURE RULES  
 
 
None 
 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



Cabinet 18 August 2016 

 

 

2 
 

30 QUARTER ONE 2016/17 PERFORMANCE REPORT  
 
 
The Leader of the Council provided Cabinet with a performance and financial 
health-check. 
 
RESOLVED: That the Members endorsed the contents of this report. 

 
 (Moved by Councillor R Pritchard and seconded by 

Councillor M Thurgood) 
 
 

31 GRANTS TO VOLUNTARY ORGANISATIONS (SMALL GRANTS 
SCHEME)/LOCAL ARTS GRANT SCHEME/SPORTS GRANTS SCHEME  
 
 
The Portfolio Holder for Communities informed Members of the Small Grants, Arts 
Grants and Sport Grants awards made during 2015/16 
 
RESOLVED: That the Members endorsed the outturn of the Cabinet 

(Grants) Sub-Committee  

 
 (Moved by Councillor S Doyle and seconded by 

Councillor R Pritchard) 
 
 
 

32 TAMWORTH BOROUGH COUNCIL COMMISSIONING OF SERVICES AND 
TAMWORTH STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIP COMMISSIONING PROSPECTUS 
UPDATE  
 
 
The Portfolio Holder for Communities seeking approval from Members to 
undertake a Tamworth Borough Council (TBC) commissioning exercise to provide 
a range of services for Tamworth residents and to award contracts following the 
tendering process and updated Members on the Tamworth Strategic Partnership 
(TSP) Locality Commissioning contracts which automatically cease on 31st March 
2017. 
 
RESOLVED: That Members 

1 authorised officers to commission a new financial 
wellbeing, debt and generalist advice service for 
Tamworth residents and delegates authority to the 
Director of Communities, Partnerships and Housing to 
agree the tender specification and to award the contract 
to the successful bidder, 
 

2 authorised officers to waive financial regulations and 
issue a grant to Tamworth Samaritans to the value of 
£7,000 for the year April 2017 to March 2018  

Page 2



Cabinet 18 August 2016 

 

 

3 
 

 
3 delegates authority to the Director of Communities, 

Partnerships and Housing to manage the contract and 
grant including any variations during the term of the 
contract and grant, and 

 
4 delegates authority to the Director of Communities, 

Partnerships and Housing to manage the eleven locality 
commissioned contracts during their final year and notes 
the de-commissioning of these contracts and the work 
undertaken by the Council and partners to support 
service users and organisations through this process. 
 

 (Moved by Councillor S Doyle and seconded by 
Councillor M Thurgood) 

 
 

  

 Leader  
 

 

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



CABINET 
 

THURSDAY, 8 SEPTEMBER 2016 
 

 
 

REPORT OF THE PORTFOLIO HOLDER FOR REGENERATION 

 
 

TAMWORTH AND LICHFIELD BUSINESS SURVEY 
 

 
 

EXEMPT INFORMATION 

Not applicable 

 
 

PURPOSE 

To provide Cabinet with information about the findings from the Tamworth and 
Lichfield Business Survey, this includes a 10 minute presentation at the start of 
Cabinet on the 8th September.  
 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

That Cabinet endorses the results of the Business survey and the proposed next 
steps. 
 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Tamworth Borough Council and Lichfield District Council mutually agreed to conduct 
a Business Survey in order to ascertain details of economic factors impacting on the 
local business community and business views on relevant initiatives. As the first of its 
kind, this would provide a benchmark for future surveys and assist in the measuring 
the health of the local economy.   
 
The results of the survey will also assist both Councils in ensuring their services to 
businesses were directed correctly and help identify any possible gaps in service 
provision or highlight potential opportunities. 
 
 

OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

The Economic Development and Regeneration (EDR) Team has taken on board the 
key findings of the Business Survey and is planning a large business support event in 
November 2016, in conjunction with numerous key partners to summarise the 
findings and outline opportunities for business.  

Services delivered by the EDR Team, are in the process of being tailored to meet the 
needs of business as highlighted by the findings, these include: 

 A refocusing of the shared service website and associated social media to 
highlight opportunities to access business support 
(www.tlforbusiness.co.uk) 

 Development of an events plan, working with a variety of partners to 
address business knowledge gaps and barriers. 

 Delivery of a business grants programme that directly addresses barriers 
to growth such as investment in sales, marketing, premises and capital 

Page 5

Agenda Item 6

http://www.tlforbusiness.co.uk/


equipment. 

 
 

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

Economic Development and Regeneration staff Officer time was involved in project 
managing the delivery of the Survey and delivering actions arising from the findings. 
 

LEGAL/RISK IMPLICATIONS BACKGROUND 
None.  
 

SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS 
None. 
 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION   

Tamworth Borough Council went out to tender for an appropriate organisation to 
assist in the delivery of the Survey, in June 2015 and MEL Ltd were awarded the 
contract.  
 
MEL Ltd undertook the following: 
 

 Interviewed, by phone, 11 strategically important, large businesses within the 
defined area to gain more of an insight into the needs and requirements of this 
business type.  

 Designed a detailed survey and analysed all responses.  

 Sent out numerous emails to businesses, resulting in 239 responses from 
September 2015 through to March 2016.  

 Produced a full report of the findings.  

The business survey was launched at a large business event on the 18th September 
2015 at Drayton Manor, with 101 attendees. The event was hosted by BBC Home 
Editor Mark Easton and featured representation by Senior Officers of both Councils 
and MP’s Christopher Pincher and Michael Fabricant. The shared service in 
conjunction with MEL Ltd then carried out varied marketing activities to push the 
survey including: regular emails, postcard reminders to business on both NNDR lists, 
social media campaigns and press releases. 
 
The main headline findings were:  

 The majority of businesses find the current trading environment very 
positive 

 More than half of businesses in Tamworth say their sales turnover has 
increased in the last three years 

 Confidence for the future is high 

 There is a need for businesses to invest in additional staff 

 A range of barriers to growth still exist 

 Business support organisations have a vital role to play in helping the area 
prosper 

 

The findings can be broken down in to four relevant areas:  

Page 6



1 Business confidence 

Businesses have reported that the trading environment has been mostly 
positive over the past three years, with more than half (56%) seeing an 
increase in sales turnover, and three out of ten reporting that increase to be 
“significant”. SMEs in particular are the most optimistic, with almost nine in ten 
saying sales turnover will increase. Businesses are also very positive about 
the future, with more than nine in ten (92%) saying they are confident they will 
prosper over the next 12 months – and 83% projecting that confidence over 
the next five years. 

2 Staffing 

It’s very encouraging to hear that almost half of the businesses surveyed 
(45%) expect to increase staffing levels over the next 12 months. It seems this 
is an ongoing reflection of business leaders’ confidence, with 38% of 
companies saying staffing levels are up compared to three years ago. SMEs 
are again particularly bullish, with 70% to 75% of those businesses saying 
they are likely to increase staff. Skilled workers are those most sought after by 
businesses (32%) followed by apprentices (25%) and professionally qualified 
staff (24%).  

3 Growth plans and barriers to growth 

Growing their business is a large part of the focus for senior staff in Tamworth 
and Lichfield based companies. Some three quarters (74%) of businesses say 
they have plans to grow their business, with around one in five firms having a 
formal written plan or strategy in place. Most of these are targeting local 
markets. In order to grow their businesses, seven out of ten plan to invest in 
sales and marketing, with others investing in staff, capital equipment and their 
premises. The biggest barrier to growth identified in the survey is cashflow, 
with some 36% of respondents citing it as a stumbling block.   

4 Business support 

Business support services continue to play a vital role for firms in Tamworth 
and Lichfield – although some respondents to our survey often didn’t know the 
best place to turn for that advice. Whilst six in ten businesses said they had 
sought assistance on a number of topics, some struggled to find the time to 
seek out advice. Advice on apprenticeships, sales and marketing, grants, 
training and access to finance all figured high in the responses. 

 
 

REPORT AUTHOR 
Matthew Fletcher – Senior Economic and Regeneration Officer 
 
 

LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Tamworth Borough Council and Lichfield District Council Business survey 2015 / 2016.  
 

APPENDICES 
None. 
  

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	6 Tamworth and Lichfield Business Survey

